
1 
 

                                                   MINUTES 
                           General Government Committee 

                           County Board Room 
Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

                10:00 a.m. Thursday, June 14, 2018 
 

Meeting called to order by Chair Masters @ 10:43 a.m. 
Members present: 
 
Attendee Name Title Status 

Brian Masters Chair Present 
Russ Arcand Vice Chair Present 

Dean Johansen Supervisor Present 

Larry Jepsen Supervisor Present 
Chris Nelson Supervisor Present 

   
Also present: Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk; Jeff Fuge, Interim County Administrator/Corporation 
Counsel; Maggie Wickre, Amanda Nissen, Treasurer; Todd Demers, Director of IT; and member of the 
press.   
                                                                       
Prior to the business meeting, Committee Members received training and information regarding the use 
of computer tablets from Todd Demers.  Committee members should contact IT Department to receive 
additional individual training. 
 
Approval of Agenda- Chair Masters called for a motion to approve the agenda as published. Motion 
(Jepsen/Arcand) to approve agenda as published. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
  
Approval of Minutes- Chair Masters called for a motion to approve the minutes of the May 10, 2018 
meeting as published. Motion (Masters/Arcand) to approve the minutes. Motion carried by unanimous 
voice vote. 
 
Public Comment – No public comment was received by committee. 

Presentations 

Chair Masters declared committee would receive update from Investment Committee as first item for 
presentation, followed by consideration of Resolution No. 51-18 (Agenda items 7.c. and 8.d.). 

Update from Investment Committee: Committee received information from Sara Schnoor, Associate 
Vice President for PMA Financial Network Inc, regarding Wisconsin Investment Series Cooperative via 
telephone conference call at 10:45 a.m. regarding investment options and procedures for investing 
available funds with WISC –(Wisconsin Investment Series Cooperative). Committee received information 
from Polk County Treasurer Nissen regarding investments and possible use of WISC for investments. 

Recommendation on proposed Resolution No. 51-18: Resolution Authorizing Entry into an 
Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement Relating to the “Wisconsin Investment Series Cooperative” 
and Authorizing Participation in the Investment Series Programs of the Fund.  Committee received 
information from Interim Administrator Fuge regarding resolution. Motion (Nelson/Jepsen) to approve 
Resolution No. 51-18 and recommend to County Board. Chairman Masters called for a voice vote on the 

  



2 
 

motion to recommend Resolution No. 51-18 to County Board. Motion to approve Resolution No. 51-18 
and recommend for passage to the County Board carried by unanimous voice vote. Signature page 
addendum to Resolution No. 51-18 will be added at County Board Meeting. 

Committee reviewed the quarterly finance report. Chairman Masters called upon Interim Administrator 
Fuge for information on finance report. Committee received information regarding quarterly report and 
lime quarry accounting system from Interim Administrator Fuge and Finance Director Wickre.  

Committee received information on the 2017 annual report and the Corporation Counsel and Child 
Support Department program overview from Interim Administrator Fuge.   

Recommendations on Proposed Resolutions 
 
Recommendation regarding proposed Resolution No. 42-18:  Resolution for Approval of Lakes 
Improvement Fund Capital Project. Chairman Masters called upon Interim Administrator Fuge for 
information regarding the proposed resolution.  Motion (Nelson/Johansen) to move Resolution No. 42-
18 to County Board with recommendation for passage.  Chairman Masters called for a voice vote on the 
motion to recommend to County Board. Motion to approve Resolution No. 42-18 and recommend for 
passage to the County Board carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Recommendation on proposed Resolution No. 49-18: Resolution to Accept Ambulance and Monetary 
Donation for Mobile Command Center.  Committee received information from Interim Administrator 
Fuge regarding resolution. Motion (Jepsen/Nelson) to approve Resolution No. 49-18 and recommend to 
County Board. Chairman Masters called for a voice vote on the motion to recommend to County Board. 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 49-18 and recommend for passage to the County Board carried by 
unanimous voice vote. 

Recommendation on proposed Resolution No. 50-18: Resolution to Authorize Write off of Certain 
Uncollectible Accounts of Community Services Division; Lime Quarry, and Golden Age Manor.  
Committee received information from Interim Administrator Fuge and Finance Director Wickre 
regarding resolution and write offs. Motion (Johansen/Jepsen) to approve Resolution No. 50-18 and 
recommend to County Board. Chairman Masters called for a voice vote on the motion to recommend to 
County Board. Motion to approve Resolution No. 50-18 and recommend for passage to the County 
Board carried by majority voice vote. 

Chairman Masters called upon Interim Administrator Fuge to present update regarding litigation. 
Interim Administrator Fuge declared that closed session would not be held as litigation update would 
occur in open session. 

Case No. 2017AP1262: Lakeland Communications v. Polk County is still in process at Court of Appeals 

Case No. 18CV391: Sharon Lynn Brown v. Polk County, et. al., S.E.R. v. Polk County Sheriff’s Department, 
et. al., is in Western District Court. 

Case No. 3:15-CV-00428 J.K.J., et. al. v. Polk County, et.al., and Case No. 3:15-cv-00433M.J.J. et.al. v. Polk 
County, et.al., (noted in meeting as Christensen 1 and 2 cases) and Court of Appeals Court Case No. 18-



3 
 

1498, 18-1499, 18-2170, and 18-2177: are under appeal process. County has Case 1 pending in Court of 
Appeals. Case 2 is scheduled for mediation on Thursday, June 14, 2018. 

EEOC Case No. 443-2017-01222: M.B. v. Polk County Community Services Division. Age discrimination 
claim was dismissed in the County’s favor in May 2018.  

Future Agenda Items 

Next meeting July 12, 2018 @ 10:00 a.m.  
Program evaluation/review and components of – keep on agenda monthly  
 
Adjourn 
 
Motion (Jepsen/Nelson) to adjourn. Chairman Masters called for a voice vote on the motion to adjourn. 
Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Meeting adjourned 12:11 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Sharon Jorgenson 
County Clerk  
 

 

























PO L K  COU N T Y,  WIS C O N SI N 
 W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S  

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
100 Polk Plaza, Suite 110, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

                                                       Phone (715) 485-9226  Email Sharon.Jorgenson@co.polk.wi.us 

1 
 

 
AGENDA AND NOTICE OF MEETING 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 
Government Center, 100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

County Board Room 
Thursday, June 14, 2018, at 10:00 a.m.  

A quorum of the County Board may be present 
 

Materials:  May 10, 2018 Minutes, Quarterly Finance Report; Proposed Resolutions;  
Program Overview and 2017 Annual Report of Corporation Counsel 
 
**At 10:00 a.m., members of the committee will meet to receive training on the use of 
electronic/computer tablets.  The business meeting of the committee will convene after 
such training.  
 
1. Call to order –Chairman Masters 
2. Approval of Agenda 
3. Approval of Minutes for May 10, 2018 
4. Public Comment (3 minutes) 
5. Announcements and Committee Information 
6. Receipt of Information from Supervisors  
7. Presentations: 

a. Review of Quarterly Finance Report 
b. Annual Report/Program Overview – Corporation Counsel 
c. Update from Investment Committee 

8. Recommendations on Proposed Resolutions 
a. Recommendation regarding Resolution No. 42-18: Resolution for 

Approval of Lakes Improvement Fund Capital Project 
b. Resolution No. 49-18: Resolution to Accept Ambulance and 

Monetary Donation for Mobile Command Center 
c. Resolution No. 50-18:  Resolution to Authorize Write Off of Certain 

Uncollectible Accounts of Community Services Division; Lime Quarry 
and Golden Age Manor 

- Table of Uncollectible Accounts Distributed During Meeting 
d. Resolution No. 51-18: Resolution Authorizing Entry into an 

Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement Relating to the “Wisconsin 
Investment Series Cooperative” and Authorizing Participation in the 
Investment Programs of the Fund 

9. Discussion and Recommendation Regarding Claims Against the County  
a. J. K. J., et.al. v. Polk County, et.al., United States District Court Western 

District of Wisconsin Court Case Nos.  3:15-cv-00428; and M. J. J. et.al. 
v. Polk County, et.al., 3:15-cv-00433; and Seventh Circuit Court of 
Appeals Court Case Nos. 18-1498; 18-1499;18-2170; and 18-2177.  

b. S. E. R. v. Polk County Sheriff’s Department, et. al., United States 
District Court Western District of Wisconsin Court Case No. 16-cv-

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


2 
 

632; S. A. L. M., v. Polk County Sheriff’s Department, et. al., United 
States District Court Western District of Wisconsin Court Case No. 16-
cv-631; S. L. C., v. Polk County Sheriff’s Department, et. al., United 
States District Court Western District of Wisconsin Court Case No. 16-
cv-630.  

c. Lakeland Communications v. Polk County, Wisconsin Court of Appeals 
Case No.  2017AP1262.  

d. Sharon Lynn Brown v. Polk County, et. al., S. E.R. v. Polk County Sheriff’s 
Department, et. al., United States District Court Western District of 
Wisconsin Court Case No. 18-cv-391 

e. M. B. v. Polk County Community Services Division, EEOC No. 443-2017-
01222. 
 
Closed Session 
 
Pursuant to Wisconsin Statute Section 19.85(1)(g), the Committee 
Board may convene in closed session to confer with counsel to receive 
oral and or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted with 
respect to the referenced pending legal actions against the County.  
 
Following said closed session, the Committee will reconvene in open 
session to consider and/act on any matter noticed herein, including 
reconvening in closed session as herein noticed.  
 

10. Review and Revise 2018 Committee Work Plan 
11. Identification of Subject Matters for Upcoming Meetings  
12. Adjourn 
This meeting is open to the public according to Wisconsin State Statute 19.83. Persons with disabilities 
wishing to attend and/or participate are asked to notify the County Clerk’s office (715-485-9226) at 
least 24 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting time so all reasonable accommodations can be 
made. Requests are confidential. 

 
 
 

 



                                       Minutes 
Government Committee 

County Board Room 
Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

10:00 a.m. Thursday, May 10, 2018 
 
Meeting called to order by County Board Chair Dean Johansen @ 10:00 a.m. 
 
Committee Members present:  Chris Nelson, Russ Arcand, Larry Jepsen, Dean Johansen, Brian Masters 
 
Others present:  Jeff Fuge, Interim Administrator and Maggie Wickre, Finance Director 
 
Election of Committee Officers   
Nominated for Committee Chair were: Russ Arcand and Brian Masters.  Ballot vote elected Brian Master 
to Committee Chair Position. 
Nominated for Vice Chair was:  Russ Arcand.  Motion (Johansen/Jepsen) moved to close nominations 
and cast a unanimous ballet for Russ Arcand.  Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.   
 
Chairman Masters called for a motion to adopt agenda.  Motion (Jepsen/Johansen) to adopt the May 
10, 2018 agenda.   Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Chairman Masters called for motion to adopt the April 12, 2018 minutes of the General Government 
Committee.  Motion (Masters/Jepsen) to adopt the minutes of April 12, 2018.  Motion to adopt minutes 
carried by unanimous voice vote.   
 
Public Comment:  No Public comment was received by committee. 
 
Announcement and committee information 
 
Update on Homeless Initiative – Jeff Fuge informed the Committee that county staff have started this 
initiative, but it is too inconclusive at this time to give a report.  Further meetings are planned with 
various groups and when more information is gathered there will be a report to the County Board. 
 
Update on Development of Revised Fairgrounds Management Agreement – Jeff Fuge explained that 
the 2003 agreement between the County and the Fair Society is still in existence and suggested that 
updates need to be made in a revised MOU.  This will be addressed in a future Committee of the Whole 
meeting. 
 
Action Items  
 
Organizational Matters – The Committee received an overview of committee assigned 
functions from Administrator Jeff Fuge.  



 
Recommendation regarding Resolution to Authorize Space Lease to Wisconsin DNR 
Resolution 36-18 – Jeff Fuge stated that the DNR reached out to the County to lease a space 
to the DNR Forester.  Motion (Nelson/Jepsen) to recommend this resolution to County Board.  
Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Recommend regarding Resolution 39-18: Resolution Approving Mid-year Budget 
Adjustment for 2018 in ADRC Fund – Motion (Nelson/Jepsen) to recommend this resolution 
to County Board.  Motion passed by unanimous voice vote.   
 
Recommendation regarding Resolution No 40-18:  Resolution to Amend 2018 Budget to 
Incorporate Carry-Forward Funds – Jeff Fuge requested that this resolution be amended on 
line 42-43 to add:  for purchase of adaptive mobility devised of $50,000.  Motion 
(Johansen/Jepsen) to recommend passage with the noted amendment and forward to the 
County Board.  Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Recommendation regarding Resolution No. 41-18:  Resolution to Authorize Cancellation 
of Outstanding Orders – Motion (Nelson/Jepsen) to recommend passage and forward to 
County Board.  Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Recommendation regarding Resolution No. 42-18:  Resolution for Approval of Lakes 
Improvement Fund Capital Project – Motion (Nelson/Jepsen) to postpone this resolution until 
further information can be obtained.  Supervisor Nelson requests withdrawal of said motion. 
Supervisor Jepsen concurs with withdrawal of the motion.  Chairperson Masters declares the 
motion withdrawn.  Motion (Nelson/Arcand) to move to County Board with no recommendation. 
Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Identification of Subject Matters for Upcoming Meeting – Supervisor Arcand clarified that if 
a committee member has an idea for an agenda item, they contact the committee chair to get 
this idea on the agenda.   
 
Deb Peterson was called in to address Resolution 42-18. 
 
Motion to adjourn (Nelson/Jepsen).  Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  Meeting 
adjourned at 11:00 a.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Maggie Wickre 
Finance Director 
Department of Administration 
 





















 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
             
      POLK COUNTY 
      OFFICE OF CORPORATION COUNSEL 
      PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jeffrey B. Fuge 
Corporation Counsel 
1005 West Main Street, Suite 100 
Balsam Lake, WI 54810 
Telephone: 715-485-9210 
Facsimile: 715-485-9171  
E-Mail:  jefff@co.polk.wi.us    

 
 
 
 
 



1 
 

 
 

OFFICE OF CORPORATION COUNSEL 
 

 
Vision Statement 

 
To enhance the organizational strength of the County of Polk by responsively providing proficient and cost-effective legal services. 

 
Mission Statement 

 
To provide professional legal services in a manner that complements, supports and  advances the ability of the County of Polk, the 
Board of Supervisors, committees, departments and connected boards and commissions, elected and appointed county officers and 
employees to deliver programs and services with integrity.  

 
Element of Polk County Mission and Vision Fulfilled 

 
 The Office of Corporation Counsel serves the public with integrity through the provision of essential legal services in an 
ethical, proficient and fiscally responsible manner.  By being proactive on legal issues, the County avoids future lawsuits. Through the 
provision of legal services to county administration and employee relations, the Office of Corporation Counsel promotes and 
strengthens the organizational integrity of county government. Through employing in-house legal counsel, the County achieves cost 
effectiveness through continued organizational awareness and the avoidance of large fees for retaining outside counsel.  Through the 
high level of professionalism in the legal services provided, the Office of Corporation Counsel improves the quality of life for all who 
work, live and play in Polk County and increases public safety, especially with respect to the legal services provided to county 
departments and in the service of the public interest that benefit and promote the well-being of children, elderly, and individuals with 
disabilities.  Through its work with other departments, the Office of Corporation Counsel helps to support our natural resources and 
develop cultural, social, and community values. 
  

***** 
 
 

 
 



2 
 

 
Summary of Program Responsibilities and Services 

 
The Office of the Corporation Counsel is a statutory office of the County.  The Office of Corporation Counsel serves as the 

general legal counsel to County of Polk government, connected boards, agencies, commissions and committees.  The Office of 
Corporation Counsel provides legal advice and advocacy in four inter-related areas of County of Polk operations:  

 
• ORGANIZATIONAL AND GENERAL GOVERNMENT LEGAL SERVICES:  In this function, the office serves as a general 

attorney to the county providing legal advice and litigation services in all areas including contract negotiation, policy and 
governance development, general government law and regulatory compliance, including open meetings law and public records 
law compliance, real estate, resolution ordinance drafting, ordinance enforcement and claims litigation and litigation 
management.  In relation to cases assigned to claims against the insurance defense counsel, the office provides litigation 
management assistance.  The office is also tasked with securing outside counsel as appropriate.  
 

• HUMAN SERVICES:  In this functional area, the Office represents the interests of the public and the Community Services 
Division in various types of administrative and court actions that involve protection of individuals and the public.  These 
matters include litigation services on cases involving guardianships and protective placements, involuntary mental and 
chemical dependency commitments, children in need of protection and services, termination of parental rights, and truancies.    
 

• EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS:  This area involves advising the Employee Relations Department on employment law 
concerns, both administrative and judicial, and the development of employee relations programming.  
 

• CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT:  The Office of the Corporation Counsel also serves as the umbrella agency responsible 
for administering the State of Wisconsin/County of Polk contract for child support services.  The Polk County Child Support 
Agency is the unit within the Office of Corporation Counsel that administers the contract on behalf of the County.  The 2017 
Annual Report of the Polk County Child Support Agency separately reports activities and concerns specific to that unit. 
 

***** 
 

 
 
 
 



3 
 

Staff  
 

 The Office of Corporation Counsel and the Child Support Agency is comprised of 9.0 FTE staff positions: Corporation 
Counsel; Assistant Corporation Counsel/Child Support Director; Lead Child Support Specialist; 4.0 FTE Child Support Specialists; 
Administrative Assistant; and Legal Assistant.     

 
Annual Report 

 
 The 2017 Annual Report of the Office of Corporation Counsel is attached.  
 

*** 



LIST OFSERVICES BOTH INTERNALLY AND EXTERNALLY PROVIDED BY YOUR DEPARTMENT:

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES:
Provide Professional, Responsive and Cost-Effective Legal Services to the County 
Provide Child Support Services Through Establishment and Enforcement of Child Support Orders and the Establishment of 
Paternity

PROGRAM OVERVIEW

The Office of Corporation Counsel serves as the general counsel of the County and prosecutes human services casses in 
representation of the interest of the public.  The Child Support Agency administers the state of wisconsin Child Support program 
for adults and children living or having cases in the Polk County Circuit Court. The Child Support Agency establishes child 
support orders and paternity and actively pursues collection of current and past child support.     

POLK COUNTY WISCONSIN

Department of Corporation Counsel and Child 
Support
Jeff Fuge, Corporation Counsel    Malia Malone, Child Support Director

 DEPARTMENT SUMMARY

The mission of the Corporation Counsel is to serve and represent the public with integrity by providing professional, responsive 
and effective legal services to the County, its boards, commissions, committees, departments, officials and employees and to 
provide stability and permancy to adults and children by providing legal counsel on cases involving the delivery of human 
services programs and services.  The mission of the Child Support Agency is to provide economic stability to children and 
families  by establishing and enforcing reasonable child support orders.  

MISSION:

DEPARTMENT DESCRIPTION:
The Office of Corporation Counsel provides a full range of legal services to the County Board, County Administrator, County 
departments, committees, boards, commissions, supervisors, elected and appointed county officials and employees in respect 
to their official duties including rendering legal opinions and advice, drafting and reviewing contracts, ordinances, resolutions 
and other legal proceedings.  The office prosecutes various civil proceedings including account collections for departments, tax 
foreclosures, mental commitments, guardianships, protective placements, termination of parental rights, and county ordinance 
enforcements, especially land use/zoning ordinances.  The office administers the Wisconsin Child Support Program on behalf of 
the County and represents the State of Wisconsin in child support cases.

LINK TO COUNTY BOARD STRATEGIC GOALS:

To serve the public with integrity through the provision of legal services to the County and child support services to families of 
Polk County



General Legal Counsel; 
Organizational and Regulatory Compliance; 
Contract Development and Negotiation; 
Ordinance, Resolution and Policy Development; 
Legal Opinions; 
Litigation of Judicial and Administrative Matters;
Litigation Management; 
Prosecute in representing the interest of the public human services cases:  mental commitments; guardianships and protective 
placements; children in need of protection and services; termination of parental rights; truancy.  
Child Support and Paternity Establishment; Collection of Child Support; Enforcement and Collection of Interstate Cases.



2016 Actual 2016 Budget 2017 Actual 2017 Budget

Actual vs. Budget
Percentage
Difference

Revenue
General Property Tax        282,502             282,502             303,665           303,665 
State Aids        558,527             520,170             521,554           519,511 
Public Charge for Services                746                 3,710                     388               3,320 
Total Revenue        841,775             806,382             825,607           826,496 0%

Expense
Personnel Services        757,695             718,871             750,746           759,095 
Contractual Services           27,719               33,718               27,819             40,374 
Supplies & Expenses           17,115               25,093               17,092             26,827 
Fixed Charges                     200                        -                     200 
Capital Outlay           19,029 28500                 8,129 
Total Expenditures        821,558             806,382             803,787           826,496 -3%
Net Revenue and Expenditures           20,217                        -                 21,821                      -   

2017 Budget 2018 Budget
FTE Employees
Officials/Administrators 1 1
Professionals 2 2
Technicians/Para-Professionals
Administrative Support 6 6
First/Mid Level Officials and Managers

Total 9 9

POLK COUNTY WISCONSIN

DEPARTMENT REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES BY ECONOMIC CLASSIFICATION

Department of Corporation Counsel and Child 
SJeff Fuge, Corporation Counsel    Malia Malone, Child Support Director

EMPLOYMENT BY JOB CLASSIFICATION

In the box below explain any deviation over 2% (greater or less than) between the 2017 actual and 2017 budgeted amount.

Variance resulting in a revenue in excess of expenditures is attributable to vacancies in position and the wage differential of 
new hires and actual cost of contracted serves considerably less that forecasted expenditures. 



2016 Actual 2016 Budget 2017 Actual 2017 Budget 2018 Budget

Revenue
General Property Tax        123,109             123,109             164,202           164,202                     156,772 
Other Revenues           94,327               90,780               56,910             70,853                       70,853 
Total Revenue        217,436             213,889             221,112           235,055                     227,625 

Expenses
Recurrent Expenditure        149,248             185,389             183,370           235,055                     227,625 
Capital/One-time Expenditure           19,029               28,500                 8,129                                -   
Total Expenditures        168,277             213,889             191,499           235,055                     227,625 
Net Revenue and Expenditures           49,159                        -                 29,613                      -                                   0 

SECTION 2: PROGRAM SUMMARY

KEY PROGRAM STRATEGIES 2018 - 19

 1. Continue to develop and provide educational opportunities to staff to 
maintain professionalism and enhance proficiencies and responsiveness consistent with changes in the need for legal services.
2. Research and implement cost-saving alternatives of computer assisted 
legal research software programs which enhance professionalism and responsiveness.   

PROGRAM PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

Develop and provide countywide training program to county 
departments that have common compliance areas 

Developed and provided multi-day training of all 
county staff of departments which handle health 
information records.

KEY PROGRAM STRATEGIES 2017 ACTUAL/PROJECTED RESULTS 2017
Develop and Leverage staff proficiencies in automated delivery of legal 
services to meet state mandate for electronic filing and services of 
court documents

All staff received training on elctronic filing to ensure 
efficiency and minimize rejection of electronically filed 
documents.  

Develop a strengthed contracting system in collaboration with 
Administration to ensure increased fiscal accountability in procurement

Procedure of contract review developed and 
implemented.  Each contract received three part 
review by contract administrator, administration and 
corporation counsel. 

Program name:
Corporation Counsel

Program Objective:  Organizational Legal Services, Human Service Cases, Ordinance Enforcement and Administration, and 
Litigation and Collection Services.

PROGRAM REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES

Successfully train and onboard staff hired in filling vacancies to 
maintain performance and cost effctiveness

All vacancies filled and new hires trained and 
onboarded on respective competencies 

Link to Board Priority:  Provide legal services in professional and responsive manner to advance organizational priorities 
identified by the County Board

POLK COUNTY WISCONSIN

Department of Corporation Counsel and Child 
Jeff Fuge, Corporation Counsel    Malia Malone, Child Support Director



Output indicators 2017 Actual 2017 Planned 2018 Estimate 2019 Estimate
Contracts, Resolutions, Ordinances and 205 175 175 175
Human Services Cases Dispositioned 323 300 325 335
Ordinance Enforcement Cases 47 55 55 60
Collections Cases Dispositioned 17 20 20 20
% Transactional Legal Services 

 
100 100 100 100

% Human Services Cases Concluded 
Timely

100 100 100 100

%Ordinance Enforcement Cases 
 

100 100 100 100
%Collection Cases Reaching 85 100 100 100
Child Support Cases Processed (CS) 1750 1775 1,800
CS Court-Ordered Establishment Rate 90 90 90
CS Current Collection Rate 70 70 70
Paternity Establishment Rate 100 100 100
CS Arrears Collection Rate 75 75 75
Cost Effectiveness/Program Dollar 5.5 5.5 5. 0 

If mandated, statutory reference
Units of service
Program cost per unit of service
Measure of client satisfaction

Issues affecting performance

Number of Requests and Referrals for Legal Services
Variable based upon request of service need

POLK COUNTY WISCONSIN

Assumptions and factors affecting program performance:

All Legal Services provided in timely manner and consistent within statutory time

Varied need for legal services; unanticipated legal claims; succession; allocated re

49.09; 51.15;51.20; 55.06 59.42; 59.53

2.  Legislation advances altering course of operations of internal operatipon requiring a shift in allocation of resources.

Department of Corporation Counsel and Child 
Jeff Fuge, Corporation Counsel    Malia Malone, Child Support Director

CONTINUATION OF CORPORATION COUNSEL PROGRAM INFORMATION:

3.  Emerging state mandates towards electronic/computerized processes will require County responsiveness in priority setting 
and resource allocation

1.  County Board has established priorities allowing for delivery of legal services to adapt consistent with set priorities.    

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS



2016 Actual 2016 Budget 2017 Actual 2017 Budget 2018 Budget
Revenue
General Property Tax        159,393             159,393             139,463           139,463                     152,475 
Other Revenues        464,946             433,100             465,032           451,978                     452,368 
Total Revenue        624,339             592,493             604,495           591,441                     604,843 

Expenses
Recurrent Expenditure        653,281             592,493             612,287           591,441                     604,843 
Capital/One-time Expenditure
Total Expenditures        653,281             592,493             612,287           591,441                     604,843 
Net Revenue and Expenditures         (28,942)                        -                 (7,793)                      -                                 (0)

Output indicators 2017 Actual 2017 Planned 2018 Estimate 2019 Estimate
Child Support Cases Processed 1640 1660 1700 1735
Performance Rate - Order Establish 77 91 90 90
Performance Rate - Pat Establish 100 100 100 100
Performance Rate - Cur Collections 76 75 75 75
Performance Rate - Arrs Collection 71 75 75 75
Effectiveness/Program Dollar 5.7 5.5 5

If mandated, statutory reference
Units of service
Program cost per unit of service
Measure of client satisfaction:

Issues affecting performance

Strengthen onboarding of new hires to ensure continued competency 
after succession

All new hires trained within 6 weeks of hire through 
computer based and mentored training. 

KEY PROGRAM STRATEGIES 2017 ACTUAL/PROJECTED RESULTS 2017

POLK COUNTY WISCONSIN

Department of Corporation Counsel and Child 

Child Support

Program objective: To improve the quality of life of families and children by assisting with appropriate financing through court or

Work Tasks Completed
$5.7 collected for $1.00 of program expenditure
Cases administered consistent with federal and state standards

Maintain and Increase Performance Results on Federal and State Performance Measures
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Assumptions and factors affecting program performance: Continued increase of population and commensurate need of services. Recurring Succession.  Loss of 
trained employees to greater compensation of other public sector positions. 

49.22; 59.53

Program name:

Link to Board Priority:  Provision of Human Services and Public Safety

PROGRAM PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

PROGRAM REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

Maintain and Increase Performance Results on Federal and State 
Performance Measures

Agency attained and exceeded previous year's 
performance results

Employee Turnover and Succession; Changing legislation; Organizational 
Indifference and Lag to Advancing Technology and Marketable Compensation

KEY PROGRAM STRATEGIES 2018 - 19

Jeff Fuge, Corporation Counsel    Malia Malone, Child Support Director



Staff Report 
General Government Committee– June 14, 2018 
By:   Jeff Fuge, Interim County Administrator/ Corporation Counsel 
 
Subject:   Resolution No. 42-18: Resolution for Approval of Lakes Improvement Capital Project 
 
Summary:  
 
Proposed Resolution No. 42-18 returns to the committee for further review and recommendation 
pursuant to the County Board referral of the resolution.  The committee initially took up the proposed 
resolution at its May meeting.  Then, the committee requested Administration to provide additional 
information concerning the capital project and the need for the amendment to the 2018 as illustrated 
in the resolution.  Irrespective of the request, the committee forwarded the resolution to the May 
2018 County Board after receiving verbal information from Parks and Buildings.    
 
The capital project referenced in the resolution is the completion of vaulted toilets at the Atlas Park. 
The record demonstrates that on August 15, 2017, the County Finance Director approved the 
issuance of request for proposals based upon submissions received in response to the request for 
proposals. The County released the request for proposal with a submission deadline of September 15, 
2017. On September 19, 2017, the County completed review of proposals and issued purchase orders 
to the successful vendors, Nick’s Trucking and Excavating, LLC., and Huffcutt Concrete, Inc.    
 
Work on the project was undertaken in 2018, being completed in April 2018. The County has 
received invoices for work performed, equivalent to the costs projections received from respective 
vendors. Total cost invoiced amounted to $28,825.  On that basis, the Corporation Counsel 
recommends the County pay those invoices.   
 
Funding of the expenditure for payment is chief focus of the resolution.   In review of budgetary 
information, the capital project was identified in the 2017 capital improvement plan as a planned 
expenditure for 2018. The 2018 budget reflects an authorized expenditure for supplies and expenses 
from appropriations from the Lake Improvement Fund.  However, budget documentation for 2018 
demonstrates that the capital expenditure contemplated for 2018 was omitted in the identified capital 
expenditures receiving consideration and authorization in the budget process.    
 
On review of the purchasing records, the County Finance Director has reached the conclusion that 
the omission was internal to the Department of Administration while preparing the budget for the 
November session.  The Finance Director has recommended that the County Board adopt an 
amendment to the 2018 budget to reallocate moneys from the Lakes Improvement Fund in the 
amount of $29,000 and to correctly characterize the expenditure as a capital expense, in contract to 
the characterization made through the approved 2018 budget.    The offered resolution is structured to 
effectuate those recommendations.  
 
Requested Committee Action:    To review and make a recommendation to the County Board on 
the proposed resolution.  









Staff Report 
General Government Committee– June 14, 2018 
By:   Jeff Fuge, Interim County Administrator/ Corporation Counsel 
 
Subject:   Ambulance and Monetary Donation for Polk County Sheriff Command Center 
Resolution No. 49-18: Resolution to Accept Ambulance and Monetary Donation for Mobile 
Command Center 
 
Summary:  
 
The General Government Committee receives this proposed resolution in relation to the 
committee’s function as the finance committee.  The resolution seeks an amendment to the 2018 
budget.  Consistent with policy, the recommendation of the committee is needed on the proposed 
budget amendment.  
 
Osceola Hospital has offered as a donation a 2006 ambulance for the purpose of a mobile 
command center after it is remodeled.  To provide for conversion of the ambulance, the Robert 
C. Brown Irrevocable Trust has offered a donation of $10,000.  
 
The Polk County Sheriff has tentatively accepted the donation. Once conversion has been 
completed, the mobile command center would provide a more useful option for a command 
center to the motorhome command vehicle presently in use.    
 
Donations of this type require acceptance of the County Board with re-allocation of the monetary 
donation.  
 
Requested Action:    At the instance of the Sheriff, it is requested that the committee 
recommend passage of a resolution to accept the donation of the ambulance and $10,000 and to 
re-allocate such sums for the purpose of converting the ambulance into a mobile command 
center.  
 
Because the donated moneys are received mid-year and an expenditure for the conversion is 
contemplated in 2018, reallocation would be an amendment to the 2018 Operating and Capital 
Budget.  



1 
 

Resolution No. 49-18   1 
Resolution to Accept Ambulance and Monetary Donation for Mobile Command Center 2 

 3 
TO THE HONORABLE CHAIRPERSON AND SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY BOARD OF 4 
THE COUNTY OF POLK: 5 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 6 
 
WHEREAS, the Osceola Hospital has offered to donate a 2006 ambulance, having received a new 7 
ambulance from Robert C. Brown, Jr.; and  8 
 9 
WHEREAS, Robert C. Brown, Jr.,  through the Robert C. Brown, Jr. Revocable Trust, has offered 10 
Polk County a monetary donation of $10,000 to convert the ambulance into a mobile command 11 
center; and  12 
 13 
WHEREAS, the Polk County Sheriff has a need for a mobile command center that provides for 14 
greater use than the mobile home that is presently in service for such purposes.  15 
 16 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Polk County Board of Supervisors is appreciative to 17 
the Robert C. Brown for the generous monetary donation of $10,000 offered through the referenced 18 
trust. 19 
 20 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Polk County Board of Supervisors accepts on behalf of Polk 21 
County the monetary donation the Robert C. Brown, Jr. Revocable Trust in the sum of $10,000.  22 
 23 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to Section 65.90, Wis. Stats., the Polk County Board of 24 
Supervisors amends the 2018 Operating and Capital Budget to reallocate the donated sum of $10,000 25 
to the departmental budget of the Polk County Sheriff’s Department and to authorize the expenditure 26 
of such sum for the purpose of converting the 2006 ambulance into a mobile command center.   27 
 28 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution is effective upon passage provided timely 29 
publication in accordance with law.  30 
 
Fiscal Impact Note: The resolution accepts a monetary donation in the sum stated and amends the budget 
of the current budget to provide for the reallocation and expenditure for the purpose for which the 
donation was made.  
 
Legal Impact Note: The resolution lawfully provides for the acceptance of the ambulance and monetary 
donations and sufficiency applies each donation consistent with the purpose for which the same were 
made.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

 
Resolution No. 49-18   

Resolution to Accept Ambulance and Monetary Donation for Mobile Command Center 
 
Offered on the 19th day of June, 2018.  
 
Signed and sponsored by:  
 
BY: ____________________________  ____________________________ 

Brad Olson, Supervisor, District #1  James Edgell, Supervisor, District #8 
____________________________  ____________________________ 
Doug Route, Supervisor, District #2  Kim O’Connell, Supervisor, District #9 
____________________________  ____________________________ 
Dean Johansen, Chair,                  Larry Jepsen, Supervisor, District #10 
Supervisor, District #3,     
____________________________  ____________________________  
Chris Nelson, Supervisor, District #4  Jay Luke, 1st Vice Chair, 
      Supervisor, District #11 
____________________________  ____________________________ 
Tracy LaBlanc, Supervisor, District #5  Michael Larsen, Supervisor, District #12 
____________________________  ____________________________ 
Brian Masters, Supervisor, District #6  Russell Arcand, Supervisor, District #13 
____________________________  ____________________________ 

       Michael Prichard, Supervisor, District #7  John Bonneprise, 2nd Vice Chair,  
Supervisor, District #14 

      ____________________________    
      Joe DeMulling, Supervisor, District #15 

 
Reviewed By County Administrator:    
Approved as to Form and Execution:    
 
_____________________________    
Jeffrey B. Fuge  
Interim County Administrator/Corporation Counsel 
 

Excerpt of Minutes 
 
 At its regular business meeting on the __ day of June 2018 the Polk County Board of Supervisors 31 
acted upon Resolution No. 49-18: Resolution to Accept Ambulance and Monetary Donation for 32 
Mobile Command Center as follows:  33 
 

� Adopted by two-thirds majority of the members of the board of supervisors by a vote of 
________ in favor and ________ against. 

� Adopted by unanimous voice vote.  
� Defeated: _____________________________________ 

� Other: ________________________________________________________ . 
SIGNED BY:     ATTEST:  
___________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Dean Johansen, County Board Chairperson         Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 



1 
 

Resolution No. 50-18   1 
Resolution to Write Off Uncollectable Accounts Receivable of Community Services Division, 2 

Lime Quarry and Golden Age Manor Nursing Home 3 
 
TO THE HONORABLE CHAIRPERSON AND SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY BOARD OF 4 
THE COUNTY OF POLK: 5 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 6 
 
WHEREAS, Subchapter 5.7, Section 1 Accounts Receivable in the County Finance policy describes 7 
the procedures for Polk County Departments to extend services to citizens and create an account 8 
receivable for these services; and 9 
 
WHEREAS, the accounts of the Community Services Division, Lime Quarry and Golden Age Manor 10 
Nursing Home, identified in the attached table of accounts have undergone a review consistent with 11 
Subchapter 5.7, Section 1 (2.04(j)), Accounts Receivable provisions of the County Finance policy 12 
and have been determined by the Finance Director in consultation with the Corporation Counsel as 13 
uncollectible and recommended to be removed from Polk County Accounts Receivable.   14 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, pursuant to Section 59.52(12), Wis. Stats., the Polk 15 
County Board of Supervisors approves the write-off of the accounts of the Lime Quarry, Golden Age 16 
Manor Nursing Home, and Community Services Division, as identified on the attached table of 17 
Uncollectible Accounts.  18 
 
Offered on the 19th day of June, 2018. 
 
Signed and sponsored by:  
 
BY: ____________________________  ____________________________ 

Brad Olson, Supervisor, District #1  James Edgell, Supervisor, District #8 
____________________________  ____________________________ 
Doug Route, Supervisor, District #2  Kim O’Connell, Supervisor, District #9 
____________________________  ____________________________ 
Dean Johansen, Chair,                   Larry Jepsen, Supervisor, District #10 
Supervisor, District #3,     
____________________________  ____________________________  
Chris Nelson, Supervisor, District #4  Jay Luke, 1st Vice Chair, 
      Supervisor, District #11 
____________________________  ____________________________ 
Tracy LaBlanc, Supervisor, District #5  Michael Larsen, Supervisor, District #12 
____________________________  ____________________________ 
Brian Masters, Supervisor, District #6  Russell Arcand, Supervisor, District #13 
____________________________  ____________________________ 

       Michael Prichard, Supervisor, District #7  John Bonneprise, 2nd Vice Chair,  
Supervisor, District #14 

      ____________________________    
      Joe DeMulling, Supervisor, District #15 

 
 



2 
 

Resolution No. 50-18   
Resolution to Write Off Uncollectable Accounts Receivable of Community Services Division, 

Lime Quarry and Golden Age Manor Nursing Home 
 
Fiscal Impact Note:  The resolution, providing for the write-off of certain uncollectible accounts, 
authorizes accounting entries necessary to characterize such accounts as an uncollectible, rather 
than an asset.  
 
Legal Impact Note:   The resolution presents minimal legal impact, discontinuing collection 
efforts of the county with respect to those accounts specified.  
 
Reviewed By County Administrator:    
Approved as to Form and Execution:    
Passage Recommended 
 
_____________________________     
Jeffrey B. Fuge 
Interim County Administrator/Corporation Counsel 
 

Excerpt of Minutes 
 
 At its regular business meeting on the ___ day of _____, 2018, the Polk County Board of 
Supervisors acted upon Resolution No. 50-18: Resolution to Write Off Uncollectable Accounts 
Receivable of Community Services Division, Lime Quarry and Golden Age Manor Nursing Home 
 as follows:  

� Adopted by majority voice vote  
� Adopted by simple majority of the board of supervisors by a vote of ________ in 

favor and ________ against. 
� Adopted by unanimous voice vote.  
� Defeated: _____________________________________ 
� Other: ________________________________________________________  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SIGNED BY:     ATTEST:  
___________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Dean Johansen, County Board Chairperson         Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 

Insert amendment to resolution according to minutes:  












	Gen Gov Minutes 6-14-18
	20180619163245628
	20180619163310994
	20180619163302089
	GG Agenda & Packet for 6-14-18
	Gen Government Agenda 6-14-2018
	05-10-18-Gen Gov Min-RevisedJeff
	June 2018 Qtrly Bd Report Gen Gov
	2018 Program Overview-CCCSA June mtg
	2017 Annual Report -June 2018 mtg
	Sheet1

	Staff Report - Atlas ToiletGG - June 2018 mtg
	Res 42-18 Lakes Impovement Fund Capital Project
	Staff Report - DonationGG June 2018 mtg
	Res No 49-18 AcceptDonation MobileCommandCenter
	Res 50-18 Resolution for Accounts Receivable Write offs GAM
	Res 51-18 Agreemt Wi Investment Series Coop
	Workplan Gen Gov 2018


